
 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 

MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION  
MD of Pincher Creek Council Chambers 

December 2nd 2025 
6:30 pm 
Agenda 

 
1. Adoption of Agenda 

 
2. New Business 
 
3. Minutes  
 

a. Meeting Minutes of November 4th, 2025 
 
4. Closed Meeting Session 

 
5. Unfinished Business 
 
6. Development Permit Applications 

a. Development Permit Application No. 2025-54 
Donald Comer 
Lot 1, Plan 9511705 within NE 21-8-1 W5 
Tourist Home 

 
b. Development Permit Application No. 2025-55 

Marco Bergeron & Jacinthe Moreau 
Lot 1, Block 2, Plan 1510616 within NW 19-7-1 W5 
Accessory Building – Variance 

 
c. Development Permit Application No. 2025 

Sherryl & John Egely  
NW 22-5-28 W4 
Moved In Residential Building 

 
 
7. Development Reports  
 

a. Development Officer’s Report 
- Report for November 2025 

 
8. New Business  

 
9. Correspondence 
 
10. Next Regular Meeting – January 6th, 2026 

 
11. Adjournment  



 

1 
 

Meeting Minutes of the 
Municipal Planning Commission 

November 4th, 2025 6:30 pm 
MD of Pincher Creek Council Chambers 

 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Commission:  Chairperson Jeff Hammond, Reeve Rick Lemire, Councillors Tony Bruder, Jim Welsch, 

Dave Cox and John MacGarva 
 
Staff: CAO Roland Milligan, Development Officer Laura McKinnon 
 
Planning 
Advisor: ORRSC, Senior Planner Gavin Scott, ORRSC, Assistant Planner Kevin Theriault 
 
Absent: Member at Large Laurie Klassen 
 
 
CAO Roland Milligan called the meeting to order, the time being 6:30 pm.  
 
1. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 
Councillor Tony Bruder     25/058 
 
Moved that the agenda for November 4th, 2025, be approved as presented. 
 
        Carried 

2. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Election of Chairperson 

 
Roland Milligan opened the floor for nominations for the MPC Chairperson.  
 
Councillor Jim Welsch nominated Jeff Hammond.  Jeff Hammond accepted the nomination for 
the MPC Chairperson.  Roland Milligan made three calls for other nominations.  With no other 
nominations, Jeff Hammond was declared Chairperson for the MPC and assumed the role.  
 

b. Election of Vice-Chairperson 
 
Chairperson Jeff Hammond opened the floor for nominations for the MPC Vice-Chairperson.  
 
Councillor Dave Cox nominated Laurie Klassen.  Laurie Klassen accepted the nomination for 
the MPC Chairperson.  Jeff Hammond made three calls for other nominations.  With no other 
nominations, Laurie Klassen was declared Vice-Chairperson for the MPC. 
 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
Councillor John MacGarva     25/059 

 
Moved that the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes for October 7th, 2025 be approved 
as presented.  



MINUTES 
Municipal Planning Commission (MPC) 

Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 
November 4th 2025 

 
 

2 
 

        Carried 
 

4. CLOSED MEETING SESSION 
 
Reeve Rick Lemire      25/060 
 
Moved that the Municipal Planning Commission close the meeting to the public, under the 
authority of the Municipal Government Act, Section 197(2.1), the time being 6:33 pm.  
 
        Carried 
 
Councillor John MacGarva     25/061 
 
Moved that the Municipal Planning Commission open the meeting to the public, the time being 6:46 pm. 
         

Carried 
 

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 
6. DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATIONS 

 
a. Development Permit Application No. 2025-52 

Castle Mountain Resort 
Lot 2, Plan 9711993 within Castle Mountain Resort 
Accessory building that may consist of ski lockers, storage sheds of less than 10 m2 (107.6 
ft2) or similar temporary buildings and accessory structure (decks) 

 
Councillor Dave Cox                                                                25/062 
 
Moved that Development Permit No. 2025-52, for 42 accessory buildings that may consist of ski 
lockers, storage sheds of less than 10m2 ((107.6 ft2) or similar temporary buildings and accessory 
structure (decks), be approved subject to the following Condition(s): 
 

1. That this development meets the minimum provisions as required in Land Use Bylaw 1349-23. 
2. That the applicant adhere to conditions set forth within the required Alberta Transportation 

Roadside Development Permit, to be attached to and form part of this permit.  
3. That this development be constructed and operated as per the submitted and approved plans.  
4. That all current and future provincial approvals regarding this development be submitted to the 

Development Officer.  
5. That RV Lot Leaseholders may only have one (1) enclosed addition, one (1) storage building 

and one (1) attached deck per lot.  
6. That all CMR Development Committee approvals be submitted to the Development Officer.  

 
 
 
 



MINUTES 
Municipal Planning Commission (MPC) 

Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 
November 4th 2025 

 
 

3 
 

7. DEVELOPMENT REPORT 
 

a. Development Officer’s Report  
 

Councillor Jim Welsch         25/063 
 
Moved that the Development Officer’s Report, for the period October 2025, be received as 
information. 

        Carried 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

9. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
 

10. NEXT MEETING – December 2nd, 2025; 6:30 pm. 
 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Councillor John MacGarva     25/064 
 
Moved that the meeting adjourn, the time being 6:56 pm. 
 
        Carried 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Chairperson Jeff Hammond    Development Officer 
Municipal Planning Commission   Laura McKinnon    
       Municipal Planning Commission  



    

  

   

 

       

  

 
 

      

   

    

   
  
   

 

 

              

 

             

          

              

              

     

                

           

             

             

                 
   

               

    

     
   



    

                 

                

             

          

         

                  

               

                  

                

                

                 

      

              

           

              
         

        
     



    

   

 

 

  

 

 

    

     
   





   

  

  

    

 

                

 

   

       

  

        

   
          

              

     

         

            

       

 

      

   

      

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

  

      

 

        

  

      

        



 

      

   

       

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   

      

 

        

   

  

      

   

     

                      

         

                   
          

 

 

                   

          



   

 

     
  

  
     

 

 

  

  

 

  

 

  

 

  









during emergencies, or familiarity with local bylaws, fire restrictions, and rural safety protocols. Adjacent
landowners rely on the presence of on-site neighbours for oversight, complaint management, and
community safety. Approving a commercial tourist accommodation under absentee ownership increases
risks associated with emergency response, property oversight, and compliance with local regulations.
>>>
>>> 3. Fire and environmental stewardship:
>>> This area is highly susceptible to wildfire. Tourist-based occupancy increases the likelihood of fire-
pit misuse and unfamiliarity with rural fire-protection measures. Adjacent landowners have no assurance
that guests will exercise the same level of care for wildfire prevention or riparian protection along the
river. Without robust hosting oversight, the potential for increased risk to both property and
environment is elevated.
>>>
>>> 4. Safety, privacy, and security impacts:
>>> Continual turnover of unknown visitors can undermine the sense of safety and security that
permanent residents rely upon. Rural neighbours develop awareness of each other’s routines and
presence; transient occupancy disrupts that social safety net. The application lacks a management plan
for guest screening, local oversight, or neighbour contact in the event of issues.
>>>
>>> 5. Impact on the river and fishing pressure:
>>> The river ecosystem and fishery in this area are already under pressure from existing use. Allowing
this development will likely increase foot-traffic, river access, and visitor activity without any
demonstrated mitigation plan. There is no identified benefit to the community to offset these potential
environmental and recreational impacts.
>>>
>>> 6. No demonstrated community benefit:
>>> The application does not identify any economic, social, or agricultural benefit to local residents, nor
any improvement to the infrastructure or services of the rural district. Instead, the development appears
driven by private financial gain while shifting the associated risks—noise, disruption, environmental
stress—onto neighbouring properties.
>>>
>>> 7. Bylaw References:
>>>   •    Land Use Bylaw No. 1349-23 (effective April 9, 2024) sets out that discretionary uses must
consider the impact on adjacent lands and requires the imposition of conditions to mitigate impacts.
>>>   •    Amendment Bylaw No. 1361-25 (2025) introduces clearer procedure for uses under Part VIII –
Special Land Use Provisions (which include tourist homes/short-term accommodations), including
mandatory public consultation.
>>>   •    The Development Authority must assess the change in use, increase in occupancy or intensity,
and ensure compliance with the purposes and policies of the Municipal Development Plan, which this
new use may conflict with.
>>>
>>> For these reasons, we respectfully request that the Municipal Planning Commission refuse
Development Permit Application No. 2025-54. If approval is considered, we ask that the Commission
impose stringent conditions to protect adjacent landowners, including but not limited to:
>>>   •    mandatory on-site host/manager presence 24 / 7
>>>   •    limitation of guest occupancy (maximum number of rooms/guests)
>>>   •    prohibition of un-hosted rental of the entire premises
>>>   •    guest screening and local contact list for neighbours
>>>   •    capping or restricting river access for guests
>>>   •    a fire-safety management plan, including licensed fire-pit usage, exclusion zones, and guest



orientation
>>>   •    a local emergency response contact located within 30 minutes of the site
>>>   •    annual review or renewal of the permit with compliance reporting
>>>
>>> Thank you for considering our position. Should you require any further information,
documentation, or neighbour sign-on sheets, please contact me at your earliest convenience.
>>>
>>> Sincerely,
>
>
>>> Gord and Shannon Culham
>







      No dogs attacking baby calves.
5.   No children playing in water-trough, or playing with intake suction hose, 
      or swimming in trough or watering hole. No dogs or people at barns.
6.    Safety for Mr. Comer and his guests: 
        Grizzly bears were never spotted by us on this farm since 1916 up to say 2014.
         But in recent years there have been a number of grizzlies spotted in SW28 quarter
          along our south hill, and eating crops. We think they sleep in the south sidehill groove of           
 trees, and in the S.E. floodplain near the river. In other words, just north of fence line.
7.       Of course walking or fishing along the edge of the river is allowed.
           (that means no "short-cutting" across our farm walking back to Mr. Comer's house.)

            If Mr. Comer and/or his guests walk north along river-edge to our irrigation engine, it is
dangerous to cross our intake water suction pipe. We encourage them to climb the riverbank and walk
on the west side of our fenced irrigation engine, then walk north a hundred yards on our property to a
gate that allows them to go back to the river.
8.    If Mr. Comer or guests suffer a medical emergency, of course they are welcome to walk       west
to our two houses. 
9.     Fire Safety:  It is best not to light bonfires along the river bank, because a sudden wind
         could spark a fire in the dry grass. Also, burn-barrels at Mr. Comer's house is a bad idea
          because Mr. Comer's house is made of dry wood and varnish.

 I might add that the Oldman River Planning Commission told me that the acreage property line
on east side was to the grassy river bank, but NOT pointed between your two green lines across the
gravel rock shore to the edge of the river.

Thank you MD#9, and Laura.     yours sincerely, ken poulsen.
.
 



November 26, 2025 

To the Municipal Planning Commission – M.D. of Pincher Creek 

 

RE:  Development Permit Application No. 2025-54 

 Lot 1, Plan 9511705 within NE 21-8-1 W5 

 

The following comments pertain to the development application by Donald Comer, No. 
2025-54 (Tourist Home – 4 Bedrooms) for short term rentals. 

As an adjacent landowner and living in my home nearby,  I would like to see the MPC make 
the resolution of full denial of this application for the following reasons. 

1. The road into and out of the home in question has a long, curved and very steep 
incline as it goes from the river valley to the connecting MD road. As a commercial 
property as a tourist home, the road is not to standard. The previous owners had a 
grader for road maintenance (e.g. washouts after severe thunderstorms) and for 
snow removal requirements in winter. As a tourist home it is very possible that 
people could easily be stranded – not to mention if medical or emergency services 
were required.  

2. The lot has an easement agreement, but this easement agreement was not 
made with the intention of more than the required traffic of a permanent 
resident. A broad use of the easement for commercial purposes likely could be 
legally challenged by the surrounding landowner. There is a history to how this lot 
came to be (initially with my father and the first owner of the lot) and I am confident 
that the easements were never entered into lightly and never with the 
consideration of commercial activity. 

3. In addition to the short-term rental occupants there would be the required traffic to 
maintain the short-term rental (e.g. regular cleaning and maintenance) which would 
mean a significant uptick of traffic on a steep road in all types of weather conditions. 
The employees of the applicant would encounter agricultural activities and livestock 
on a regular basis. They would also need to navigate the steep road when/if it was 
plowed in the winter.  

4. The surrounding land of the lot is agricultural with a new and expensive irrigation 
system recently installed. Cow calf pairs are also periodically and regularly grazing 
on the land surrounding the lot. People from the tourist home are likely not aware of 
the safety required to be around agricultural aspects such as irrigation and cattle. 



There is the potential for damage or injury that would be financially incumbent upon 
the landowner (i.e. Rut’s Ranching Ltd) surrounding the lot if damage or safety 
issues occurred outside of the parameters of the lot.  

5. Behind the residence is a beautiful old-growth douglas fir forest. If approved this 
forest would be an attraction for said tourists staying at the residence – although 
they would be trespassing on land that is not part of the lot (i.e. landowner C. 
Murphy- Blomgren). Potential problems include:  

a. interaction with wildlife including but not limited to deer, cougars, black 
bears with cubs, grizzly bears with cubs and Rocky Mountain wood ticks. 
(Note: all of the above have been regularly and recently viewed or noted in 
these woods). 

b. Parts of the forest and riverbank are very steep and dangerous – as the soil 
dries out and easily slumps away. There is a potential for a long fall down 
from the riverbank towards the river. 

c. As drought conditions continue to be a challenge in southwestern Alberta, 
this forest becomes vulnerable to long hot summer days and is equally 
vulnerable in the spring before the new growth comes in. Tourists generally 
are not aware of MD fire bans nor of the need for caution. In the last ten 
years, there have been 5 different occasions with nearby fires. The winds of 
this area can easily arise, and fire awareness and safety are required year-
round. 

d. In the winter, walking on the river ice can be dangerous. There was a February 
drowning of a young child about 25 years ago, just downstream of the lot.  

e. Although tourist homes come with a manual for the visitors, there is no 
certainty that they will read or heed the list of what not to do. With four 
bedrooms available it is likely that families, multi-generational groups or 
several couples would come which makes managing such groups more 
challenging. 

6. This arm of the Oldman River is under the jurisdiction of the federal government i.e.   
the Ministry of Fisheries and Oceans. The current residence has a septic field within 
the gravel river valley. With the water and sewage use of a tourist home the septic 
field may not be sufficient to handle such demands. Overuse of the septic field 
would potentially have impact on the health of the river within the lot and 
downstream. Floods have occurred in recent history and could also affect the septic 
system and therefore the health of the river. 

7. Because of the agricultural activity, the forest, and the river, a tourist home 
located on this lot becomes a significant legal and financial risk for the 
adjacent landowners. It is also without compensation from the commercial 



activities although many of the problems would require action from them, (i.e., as a 
neighbour would I not try and help someone in need although the situation was not 
one of my own choosing?). 

8. Additionally, there is the lack of certainty of who is physically in the tourist home 
and who they are at any one time. In other words, living next to a tourist home with 
people coming and leaving on an ongoing basis would create an ongoing, 
uncomfortable, and permanent uncertainty. There is a psychological effect upon 
myself and my family as the closest resident to this proposal that also needs to be 
considered. Unlike a permanent resident living in the home that a neighbour gets to 
know and understand, a tourist home has a change of occupants of whomever 
might decide to make a booking. 

9. If approved, the psychological, legal, and financial risk is not by choice of the 
adjacent landowners. 

10. The applicant is a resident of the United States (as told to me by the real estate 
agent in the recent sale of the residence in summer 2025). Donald Comer does not 
reside in the local area, nor the province of Alberta, or even the country of Canada. 
This fact indicates an absentee landowner managing a commercial property from 
another country. 

11. The applicant has not made any contact with me as a landowner, either as a 
neighbour or as concerned landowner although I can be reached by telephone or 
have a meeting in person or online. 

It is for the above reasons that I am submitting my comments regarding this application. 

Regards, 

 

Constance Murphy-Blomgren  

  





    

  

   

    
       

  
 

   

      

   

 

    

     
  
     

 

 

            

   

             

               

                

              

        

                 

           

            

    

     
   



    

               

                 
    

              

               
                 

 

             

       

        

     



    

   

 
  

 

 

 

 
 

  

       

    

     
   





  

       

    

                

 

   

       

   

        

   

         

              

     

      

            

       

 

   

   

      

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   

      

  

 

 

 

        

        



 

   

   

       

   
  

   
  

   
  

   
 

   

      

 

 

 

        

  

     

  

   

     

                      

         

                   

          

    

  

  

                  

         



 

        
        
          

     

              
          

                
               
             

  

          

              
            

   

               
             

 

            

     

             
        

        

         
         

     

            

              
  

              
               

     

               
             

            

         



  
  

 

     
  

  
     

 

 

     

 

   

 

 

  

 

  



  

     
   

   

  

 

 



      

  

 

  
  

 

 

 

 
 















    

  

   
   

  

 
 

   

      

   

 

    
  

  

 

 

           

     

             

            
         

              

        

                

  
           

            
 

                 

           

    

     
   



    

              
           

             
       

        
     



    

   

 

 

 

  

  

 

 
  

 

 
  

    
     

   





   

  

  

  
 

                
 

   

       

  

        

  

       

              

     

     

            

      

 

   

   

      

   
  

   
  

   
  

   
  

   

      

 

        

        



 

   

       

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

  

     

 

        

     

  

        

   

     

                      

        

                   

          

 
   

 

  

  

                  

         



     
  

  
     

 

 

    

 

  

     

  

 

  





















DEVELOPMENT OFFICER REPORT

November 2025

Development / Community Services Activities include:

• Nov 4 Planning Session

• Nov 4 Municipal Planning Commission Meeting

• Nov 6 Elections Alberta Meeting
• Nov 7 Channel Migration Processes & Hazards Session (GOA)

• Nov 10 MPE Meeting
• Nov 11 Remembrance Day

• Nov 12 Committee & Council Meeting

• Nov 13 CoiTidor Consei'vation Action Plan (Miistakis Institute)

• Nov 19 First Aid
• Nov 20 Rural Economic Development Training

• Nov 21 South Canadian Rockies - Team One Ivteeting

• Nov 22 Public Lands Officers Meeting (GOA)
• Nov 22 Committee & Council Meeting

• Nov 27 Performance Evaluation

• Nov 28 Standard Day Off

PLANNING DEPARTMENT STATISTICS

Development Permits Issued by the Development Officer for October 2025

No.

2025-57

2025-28

2025-59

Applicant

Patricia McRae

Hannah Noerenberg

Clayton & Gena

Salzmarm

Division

3

4

3

Legal Address

Ptn of NW 36-6-1 W5

Lot 9, Block 2, Plan 9813289
within Walking Plow Estates

NE 27-5-2 W5

Development

Accessory Building

Single Detached Residence &
Accessory Building

Single Detached Residence

replacement

Development Permits Issued by Municipal Planning Commission October 2025

2025-52 Castle Mountain Resort

|Lot 2, Block 9711992 within
ICMR

RV Development - 42 accessory

buildings that may consist of ski
lockers, storage sheds of less than

10m2 (107.6ft2) or similar temporary
buildings, and accessoiy structure

(deck)



Development Statistics to Date

DESCMPTION

Dev Permits

Issued

Dev

Applications
Accepted

Utility Permits
Issued

Subdivision
Applications
Approved

Rezoning

DESCMPTION

Compliance Cert

4-Nov

2-Nov

6-Nov

0-Nov

0-Oct

1-Oct

2025
To date (Dec)

53
37-DO

15 -MPC
1 - Council

59

48

11

2025 to Date
(Dec)

16

2024

54
38-DO

16-MPC

58

23

12

1

2024

34

2023

49
31-DO

18-MPC

54

35

5

0

2023

21

2022

48
29-DO

19-MPC

49

12

8

5

2022

32

RECOMMENDATION:

That the report for the period ending November 27, 2025, be received as information.

c^
Prepared by: Laura McKirmon, Development Officer Date: November 27, 2025

Respectfully Submitted to: Municipal Planning Commission


	MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION



